JUN 0 8 2012

COURT OF AITEALS
DIVISION III
STATE OF WASHINGTON
By

No. 301290-III

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MIKE WALCH, et. al.,

Appellants

v.

KERRY A. CLARK, et. al.,

Respondents.

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS'

Chris A. Montgomery, WSBA #12377
Richard T. Cole, WSBA #5072
Attorneys for Appellants
Mike and Marcia Walch
Montgomery Law Firm
344 East Birch Avenue
PO Box 269
Colville, Washington 99114
(509) 684-2519
FAX (509) 684-2188



JUN 0 8 2012

COURT OF AITEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By

No. 301290-III

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MIKE WALCH, et. al.,

Appellants

V.

KERRY A. CLARK, et. al.,

Respondents.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- I. The Trial Court Erred As A Matter Of Law In Concluding That Reasonable Necessity Was Not Shown Sufficient To Establish A Private Way of Necessity Pursuant to RCW 8.24.010 and In Entering Judgment Dismissing Walch's Claim Under RCW 8.24.010 (CP 447)
- II. The Trial Court Erred as a Matter of Law by Awarding Respondents' Attorney Fees Under RCW 8.24.030 for Walches' Separate Claims For Prescriptive Easement and Implied Easement. (CP 448)
- III. The Trial Court Erred In Awarding Respondents' Attorney Fees Where The Findings Of Fact Recite The Defendants' Arguments And Claims, But Does Not Make Specific Findings That The Facts Support Such Claims Exist (CP 449-450)

ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. Does the decision of the trial court denying private condemnation violate the overriding public policy against rendering landlocked property useless? (Assignment of Error I)
- 2. Is property that is without legal access landlocked, thereby satisfying the requirement of necessity for a claim under RCW 8.24.030? (Assignment of Error I)
- 3. Were the Walches required to prove that they could guarantee that the City would issue permits for their intended beneficial use of their property? (Assignment of Error I)
- 4. Where the evidence showed that the Walches super-load lowboy trucks, essential to the operation of the RSE business, physically cannot exit or enter their property by means of the

easterly Dalle Road/Owens Road access, did the Walches establish a reasonable reed for the Easement By Necessity across the lands of Clark, Clark, LLC and Folkman? (Assignment of Error I)

- 5. Did the Trial Court Misconstrue the Attorney Fees Provision in RCW 8.24.030? (Assignments of Error II and III)
- 6. Was there a common core of facts and related legal issues between the statutory private way of necessity claim and the common law prescriptive easement and implied easement claims? (Assignments of Error II and III)
- 7. Was the award of attorney fees and costs to the Respondents in the amount of \$165,807.75 excessive and unjustified? (Assignments of Error II and III)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Decisions for Which Review is Sought

Appellants are Mike Walch and Marcia Walch, husband and wife, (Walches; Plaintiffs below). Respondents are: Kerry A. Clark and Patricia L. Clark, husband and wife (Clark); W. L. Clark Family LLC, a Washington Limited Liability Company (Clark LLC); and Robert C. Folkman and Patricia W. Folkman, husband and wife (Folkman). Walches seek review of the Memorandum Decision (CP 246-251); the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (CP 445-454); the Orders Awarding Clarks' and Folkmans' Fees and Costs CP 455-457 and CP 458-460); the Final Judgments in favor of Clarks and Folkman (CP 461-465 and CP 466-469), and the Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration (CP 208-212) by the Superior Court for Kittitas County. The Decisions, Findings and Orders: 1) dismissed Appellant Walches' claim for an easement by necessity pursuant to RCW 8.24.010 over property owned by Respondents Clark, Clark, LLC, and Folkman, 2) quieted title to the Clark, Clark, LLC and Folkman properties in the respective Respondents; 3) awarded Respondents attorney fees and costs associated with defending against the actions for prescriptive easement, implied easement and condemnation of private way of necessity; and 4) denying Appellant Walches Motion for Reconsideration (CP 470-471).

Factual History

Appellants Walch are the owners of Rainier Skyline Excavators, Inc. (RSE), a company that designs, builds and delivers portable hydraulic track drive skyline excavators, buckets, teeth and accessory equipment (CP 447-448; Ex. 40). These systems incorporate redesigned cable logging systems to span areas and are used to harvest gravel and sand below water tables (RP Vol. I, p.10; Ex. 40). Mike Walch first became interested in the property in Cle Elum, Washington, in late 1999 or early 2000, when he saw it advertised for sale from the interstate, because it had large ponds (Dalle ponds) on the property which provided good exposure for sales and could be used to demonstrate and test the equipment before delivery (RP Vol. I, pp. 11-12; Exs. 42-45). The features of the property were unique – a horseshoe shaped pond and solid gravel ground surrounding the ponds were ideal for his business purposes (RP Vol. I, p. 12-14). The Walches intend to use the land to demonstrate, display and sell Rainier Skyline Excavators' machinery, using the horseshoe shaped pond as a staging and observation area, and either

manufacture or assemble several components of the excavator on their land (CP 448; RP Vol. II, pp. 19 & 21). Many components of this equipment are transported on extra-long lowboy trailers, called superloads. These superloads can be up to 165 feet in length and can carry several hundred thousand pounds (CP 448).

The Dalle ponds were created by the removal of gravel during the development of Interstate 90 in the 1960's (CP 9). When Walch first viewed the property, they accessed their real property on several occasions from N. Oakes Avenue, thence Easterly, over and across an existing road that crossed the real property of the Clarks, Clark, LLC and Folkmans (RP Vol. I, pp. 16-18; Exs. 2-8), now known as Swiftwater Business Park. The property of each Respondent lies to the West of the Walch property. (Exs. 12, 45/App. "A", 52, and 54/App. "B")

The Walch property is located in the City of Cle Elum Industrial Zone (RP Vol. I, p. 72; Ex. 106). Prior to purchasing the property, Walch met with the City of Cle Elum City Planner and Mayor, and it was their understanding that their intended use of the property would be allowed. (RP Vol. I, p. 21). From discussions with the City officials, Walch understood the City wanted a street that was North of their property and South of the BNSF

tracks, the full length from Owens Alley clear to Oakes Avenue (RP Vol. I, p. 22). Nonetheless, they saw no problem bringing their equipment in via the Oakes route used when they first visited the property (RP Vol. I, p.29).

On May 12, 2004, the Walches purchased the Dalle property in Cle Elum, Washington. The Walches Real Estate Contract (Ex. 1) provided that access to the property was by way of an existing easement over an existing road on the Dalle property to the East of the Walches land, then across Northern Pacific Railroad land, "so long as the railroad shall allow" (now Burlington Northern & Santa Fe Railroad, BNSF). This road heading East through the Dalle property and then continuing East through the BNSF corridor to Owens Road, which is commonly known as Dalle Road.

Dalle Road connects to Owens Road, a private road (RP Vol. I, p. 126; Ex 54/App. "B") At Owens Road, the Walches must proceed North on the private Owens Road through the BNSF corridor, across the BNSF railroad crossing to the North edge of the BNSF corridor to get to the point where Owens Road becomes a public right of way owned by the City of Cle Elum (RP Vol. I, pp. 125-26; Exs. 12, 54/App. "A" & 57)

Schedule B of the Walches Real Estate Contract sets out special exceptions to the policy of title insurance, and Paragraph 6 thereof indicates:

PRIVATE ACCESS TO SAID PREMISES is across a railroad right of way. This Company will require that the "Private Roadway and Crossing Agreement" and any assignment or modifications thereof which were issued by the railroad company, be submitted for examination. The coverage the afforded under any policies issued, relative to access to said premises, will be limited by the restrictions, conditions and provisions as contained therein. If no "agreement" exists, the forthcoming policy will contain the following exception:

The lack of a right of access to and from the land across a railroad right of way.

(Ex. 01, Exhibit B.) Although the Walches contract provides for alternative access should Dalle Road be closed or vacated, the parties stipulated that, either way, the Walches legal access does not include the railroad corridor two hundred feet North and South of the centerline and that no permits exist for Walch or the City of Cle Elum to cross the BNSF Railroad corridor (RP Vol. I, 4-5; *see also* RP Vol. I, p. 16, 127 & 130; Exs. 1, 9 & 54/App. "B"). Moreover, the alternate route does not take Walch all the way to the privately held portion of Owens Road, and gives Walch no legal right to use that road (Ex 54/App. "B")

¹ The City of Cle Elum does have a private agreement with the Owens Family to use Owens Road South of the BNSF railroad crossing from the North line of Section 36 to the City of Cle Elum's sewage treatment plant (RP Vol. I, p. 126; Ex. 58). Nonetheless, no written agreement exists as to the railroad corridor and crossing.

After Walch purchased their property, BNSF sold the South 150-foot portion of the railroad corridor North of the Clark and Folkman parcels to the Clarks (Exs. 6 & 7). William and Patricia Clark in turn conveyed that property to Clark, LLC. (Ex. 3) As a result, Walch believed efforts to obtain a street easement through the BNSF corridor were futile (RP Vol. II, Pp. 51-52). According to the testimony of Mike Walch, he cannot get their access insured (Ex. 9); because they do not have a BNSF permitted easement for access to their property, and BNSF was not willing to grant an easement along its corridor to access their property (RP Vol. II, pp. 4-5; 9). Further, they cannot get bank financing to construct their manufacturing facility because of this condition of the title (RP Vol. II, p. 10). The Walches did file an Application for Purchase of Railroad Land (Ex. 114) on October 27, 2010, but BNSF has taken no action on that application (RP Vol. II, P 40). They have not sought a permit to cross the railroad at Owens Road (RP Vol. II, p. 43). They did, however, try to get a railroad crossing and access so they could access their property directly from the North, but BNSF refused to consider any additional unguarded railroad crossings (RP Vol. II, p. 46).

Since Walches purchased their property, Respondents Clark and Folkman have spent time and money to develop the Swiftwater Business

Park, including the Clarks' improvement of the building now housing Marson & Marson Lumber, developing and housing a glass company, and constructing a two-story office building which houses the Kubota tractor dealership and other tenants (CP 448). Clark, LLC has also sought to short plat and rezone its property immediately North of the Clark and Folkman lands (CP 448; RP Vol. I, p.76).

The property of all parties is presently zoned Industrial by the City of Cle Elum as defined by Chapter 17.36 of the Cle Elum Municipal Code (Ex. 106). According to the testimony of Matt Morton, City Administrator, the Walches have not submitted any land use applications for their property for the use by their company, RSE (RP Vol. I, p. 89). Mike Walch testified that he does not want to do any studies or plans until they have legal access to their property (RP Vol. II, p. 56). Morton indicated that while the Walches' intended uses of their property may be permitted in the Industrial Zone if they are developed and used in a manner that complies with the performance standards and aesthetics objectives of the Chapter 17.36 of the Municipal Code (RP Vol. I, p.72), he also noted that the Walches' use would be a conditional use and that it would be premature to give an opinion as to whether the use would be granted (RP Vol. I, p.90). Mike Walch testified that

none of the anticipated activities of RSE fell within the definitions of conditional uses (RP Vol. II, p.30-31; Ex. 106). Morton also pointed out that the Dalle ponds were classified Category Three Wetlands, and any application would have to be reviewed and reconciled with the City of Cle Elum Critical Areas Ordinance (RP Vol. I, pp. 91-97; Ex. 107).

On August 20, 2010, Walches filed a Complaint To Establish An Easement From Prior Use And/Or Prescription; Or Alternatively An Easement By Necessity Pursuant to RCW 8.24.010 Et. Seq. (CP 1 – 63).

On January 14, 2011, pursuant to a stipulation by all parties, the Court entered its Order dismissing the Walches' claim for an easement from prior use, with prejudice. On February 8, 2011, the Trial Court entered its order for partial Summary Judgment dismissing, with prejudice, the Walches' claims for prescriptive easements over and across the lands of Clark, Clark, LLC and Folkman.

The matter pertaining to the statutory easement by necessity pursuant to RCW 8.24.010 et seq. was tried by the Court, without a jury, on May 10 and 11, 2011. The Walches sought a 30-foot easement by necessity, asserting their property was landlocked because they have no legal right to cross the railroad right of way, at the Owens Road crossing or otherwise, and because

the Easterly access route was unsuitable for the Walches' heavy excavator equipment, including commercial extra-long lowboy traffic: The super-load lowboy hauling equipment would be forced to traverse an elevated railroad crossing, risking the danger that it would get "high-centered" and caught on the tracks (RP Vol. I, p.37; RP Vol. II, p. 44; 48-49). Further, included 1) the inability to negotiate the turns at Owens Road at the Dalle intersection; 2) the inability to negotiate turns at the intersection at First Street and Owens Road; 3) the inadequate width of Owens Road; and 4) the grade level at the Owens Road crossing. Each of the barriers renders it impossible for Walches to drive the RSE super-load lowboys (some as long as 165 feet) to and from their property. As a result of these physical constraints, it is virtually impossible to use the Easterly Dalle Road access, further necessitating an alternate right-of-way across the Clark and Folkman lands (RP Vol. I, pp. 42-44 & 56; Vol. II, pp 47, 49, 73; Exs. 46 & 47).

The Walches claimed the easement by necessity should be located off Swiftwater Boulevard through the Folkman, Clark, LLC and Clark properties in a Southeasterly direction along the Southern edges of the Defendants' properties immediately inside the Department of Transportation right of way fence, thence to the Southwest corner of the Walch property (RP Vol. II,

p.25; Ex. 53). Although they sought a 30-foot easement, Mike Walch testified that a 20-foot width would suffice. (RP Vol. II, p. 26).

On May 24, 2011, the Court issued its Memorandum Decision (CP 246-251) and on July 11, 2011, it entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (CP 445–454). Judgment was entered dismissing Walches' claim of an easement by necessity under RCW 8.24.010, without prejudice, and granting each of Defendants' counterclaim to quiet title in their respective properties (CP 461-465; 466-469). The Court also awarded Clark, Clark LLC and Folkman their attorney fees and costs (CP 455-457; 458-460). Reconsideration was denied on July 21, 2011 (CP 476) and Notice of Appeal was filed on August 4, 2011 (CP 477-511).

ARGUMENT

- I. The Trial Court Erred As A Matter Of Law In Concluding That Reasonable Necessity Was Not Shown Sufficient To Established Private Way of Necessity Pursuant to RCW 8.24.010.
 - A. Private condemnation effectuates the overriding public policy against rendering landlocked property useless.

Article I, Section 16 of the Washington State Constitution provides:

"Private property shall not be taken for private use, except for private ways

of necessity." This express provision reserves for private citizens the power of eminent domain. See generally State ex rel. Mountain Timber Co. v. Superior Court of Cowlitz County et al., 77 Wash. 585, 137 P. 994 (1914).

In its current form, RCW 8.24.010 is a broad grant of eminent domain power to private citizens:

[a]n owner or one entitled to the beneficial use, of land which is so situate with respect to the land of another that it is necessary for the proper use and enjoyment to have and maintain a private way of necessity may condemn and take lands of such other sufficient in area for the construction and maintenance of such private way of necessity.... The term 'private way of necessity,' as used in this chapter, shall mean and include a right-of-way on, across, over or through the land of another for means of ingress and egress, and the construction and maintenance thereon of roads... over and through which timber, stone, minerals or other valuable materials and products may be transported and carried.

The statute reserves, in private citizens, the right to condemn private property for private use. The constitution and statute say nothing about the condition of the property or the limitations regarding the application of the statute. Rendering title unmarketable and forever sealing valuable resources of the State, does not serve the public or private interest expressed in Washington Const. art. 1, § 16 and the private condemnation statute.

The effect of the Trial Court's decision basically leaves the Walch property landlocked and consequently renders the Walch property virtually

useless. In essence, because there is a remote and speculative chance that the City of Cle Elum may not grant permits for Walch's intended use of the property, the Trial Court refused the Walches the only remedy that would give them legal access: an easement by necessity. And, because Walch's permissive use of the railroad corridor has not been actually terminated or physically barred, the Trial Court again denied Walch the only remedy that would secure their access so that they could make full beneficial use of their property, and the permissive use of the Railroad Corridor and Crossing can be terminated at any time. Without legal, insurable access, they could not secure financing to develop their land, and the permissive use of the railroad corridor and crossing can be terminated at any time (RP Vol. II, p. 10). It sits Landlocked property is greatly discouraged in vacant and unused. Washington. See Const. art. 1, § 16; RCW 8.24.010; State ex rel. Mountain Timber Co. v. Superior Court of Cowlitz County et al., 77 Wash. 585, 137 P. 994 (1914); Hellberg v. Coffin Sheep Co., 66 Wn.2d 664, 404 P.2d 770 (1965) (discussing public policy against rendering landlocked pr operty useless). It is in the interest of the public welfare to fully utilize the resources of this state. See Mountain Timber Co., 77 Wash. at 588-89. That public interest is undermined when landowners are unable to develop and exploit their land to its desired and intended beneficial use.

B. Property without legal access is landlocked, satisfying the requirement of necessity.

The Trial Court erred by imposing the precondition that Walches first be denied use of the railroad crossing or corridor as a prerequisite to establishing necessity. The proof was clear that Walches lacked legal access to their property, and the parties stipulated that there were neither public nor private permits to traverse the railroad corridor or to use the railroad crossing (RP Vol. I, 4-5; *see also* RP Vol. I, p. 16, 127 & 130; Exs. 1, 9 & 54/App. "B"). Walches' Dalle Road easement runs over the railroad corridor without written permission and traverses the railroad crossing without a permit. And, although Walches have an alternative, contingent easement route should the Dalle Road section in the corridor be withdrawn, this alternative route does not resolve the issue. That route ends before it connects to Owens Road (Ex 54/App. "B") and, at the point of intended connection, Owens Road is a private road which Walches have no legal right to use (RP Vol. I, p. 126). Even if Owens Road were a legal route for Walches, it still bisects the

railroad corridor and necessitates the use of the railroad crossing (Ex 54/App. "B")

Despite these facts, the Trial Court concluded that Walches' property was not landlocked, and necessity not established, because their permissive access has not been denied or withdrawn (CP 451). Such a requirement does not exist. In fact, in *Brown v. McAnally*, 97 Wn. 2d 360, 367-68, 644 P.2d 1153 (1982), the court stated:

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