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

III. ARGUMENT 

A. The Disfavored Private Condemnation Statute was Never Intended 
to Allow Walches to Cherry-Pick a Singular Use for Their Property When 
They Can Make Myriad Other Beneficial Uses of the Property Under the 
City of Cle Elum 's Industrial District. 

The private condemnation statute, RCW 8.24.01 0, "is not favored in 

law and thus must be construed strictly." Brown v. McAnally, 97 Wn.2d 360, 

370, 644 P.2d 1153 (1982). The public policy underlying the statute is to pre-

vent landlocked property from being rendered useless. Id. at 367. Under 

Washington law, "[t]he taking will not be tolerated unless the necessity is par-

amount in the sense that there is no other way out or that the cost is prohibi-

tive, for it must be borne in mind that, after all, this is a condemnation proceed-

ing. We are taking the property of one man and giving it to another.. . . There 

is a constitutional right involved, and such rights should not be so lightly re-

garded that they may be swept away to serve convenience and advantage mere-

ly." State ex rel. Carlson v. Superior Court, 107 Wash. 228,232, 181 P. 689 

(1919) (emphasis added); accord, Brown, 97 Wn.2dat 370; State ex rel. Schleif 

v. Superior Court, 119 Wash. 372, 373, 205 P. 1046 (1922) (the condemnors 

"are required to show a reasonable necessity for the proposed road and that they 

have not any other practical or feasible way out"). "Thus, the private condem-

nation statute is a remedy of last resort, a fallback for a landowner who has no 
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other reasonable means of access." 17 Wash. Practice: Real Estate Property 

. Law, §2.5 at 96 (Stoebuck & Weaver, 2d ed. 2004). 

As stated in Brown: "An owner or one entitled to the beneficial use of 

landlocked property may condemn a private way of necessity for ingress and 

egress in the ordinary sense of a 'way', i.e., a mere right of passage over land." 

97 Wn.2d at 367. It follows, therefore, that if a property owner can make "ben

eficial use" of his land under its existing zoning, he is not "landlocked" for 

purposes of the private condemnation statute. Walches clearly have existing 

access to make myriad uses of their industrial zoned property. Walches' claim 

of necessity really turns on an equipment issue (access by lowboys), not the ab

sence of a means of ingress and egress in the ordinary sense of a "way". 

Nothing in the private condemnation statute, or the cases interpreting it, 

supports Walches' argument that they are landlocked just because they cannot 

make a particular use of their property. Indeed, the cases allowing a second 

access to make beneficial use of property typically involve residential proper

ties where the topography precludes the construction of a residence, or makes it 

cost-prohibitive to do so, thus denying the property owners the beneficial use of 

their land. See,~, Beeson v. Phillips, 41 Wn. App. 183, 702 P.2d 1244 

(1985); Sorenson v. Czinger, 70 Wn. App. 270,852 P.2d 1124 (1993). These 

cases are readily distinguishable. 

11 



Moreover, the necessity must exist in fact at the time the private con

demnation proceeding is commenced. As stated in Dreger v. Sullivan, 46 

Wn.2d 36, 40,278 P.2d 647 (1955): "Unless and until it is established that the 

route over the Copenhaver property (easement by implied grant) is not available 

to them, the plaintiffs cannot sustain the burden of proof that the route across 

the Sullivan property (private way of necessity) is even 'reasonably necessary' 

for the proper use and enjoyment of their property." This language further sup

ports the proposition that Walches cannot sustain their burden of proof until 

they first establish that they can legally use their land for their intended future 

use, which they have not done. 

Walches are asking this Court to read into the private condemnation 

statute language that simply does not exist. If the Legislature intended RCW 

8.24.010 to apply to allow an owner of vacant land to condemn a second access 

where the existing access allows for the beneficial use of the property, it could 

have stated so in the statute. It did not. A court "will not read language into a 

statute that is not there." Hartson Partnership v. Goodwin, 99 Wn. App. 227, 

236, 991 P.2d 1211 (2000). 

Because the private condemnation statute is disfavored and strictly con

strued, "[t]he taking is limited to necessary ingress and egress only. It is not 

extended to those necessities that may be created by the contemplation of a fu-
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ture real estate subdivision development." Brown, 97 Wn.2d at 370. Brown 

thus makes clear that Walches cannot seek an easement by necessity solely to 

accommodate their super-load lowboys or to develop their property for every 

potential use. See also Jobe v. Weyerhauser Company, 37 Wn. App. 718,726, 

684 P.2d 719 (1984), review denied, 102 Wn.2d 1005 (1984) (proposed ease-

ment for ingress and egress for purposes of developing property grants more 

than a private way of necessity as contemplated by the state constitution and 

RCW 8.24). 

B. Walches Have Not Established They Can Lawfully Use Their Land 
as Intended; Therefore, Their Claim of Necessity Based Upon Such Use 
Fails as a Matter of Law. 

Walches' intended use of their property requires a conditional use per-

mit, and there is no guarantee that the use would be allowed. RP (511 0/11) at 

90-93. Unless the Walches obtain a conditional use permit, their intended use 

would not be lawful. As a matter of common sense, logic, and law, Walches 

cannot establish the element of "reasonable necessity" without first estab-

lishing that the necessity is based upon a lawful use of their land. 

Walches have not filed a land use application for their intended use of 

their property; therefore, they have no vested right to such use. "The 'vested 

rights doctrine' provides that a developer who files a completed land use appli-

cation that complies with zoning laws and regulations in force at the time of 
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application has a vested right to develop land under those laws and regula

tions." Kelly v. Chelan County, 157 Wn. App. 417,424,237 P.3d 346 (2010). 

Until Walches file a land use application that complies with the City of Cle 

Elum' s existing land use regulations, they have no right whatsoever to develop 

their property. 

Walches' argument, that a permit for their intended land use must be 

issued as a merely ministerial act, is woefully misplaced. In Kelly, this Court 

made clear "that the grant or denial of a special or conditional use permit is ad

judicatory in nature." Id. at 425. "That is, the legislative body has discretion to 

issue the permit or not." ld. The City of Cle Elum may well deny Walches' 

land use application, or impose such restrictions on it that Walches decide it is 

not cost-effective to pursue it. Such issues, however, are purely speculative at 

this time; and it would be improper to grant an easement by necessity where the 

alleged necessity (using super-load lowboys to access a non-existent manufac

turing plant) may never come into being. "Before [Walches] are entitled to 

condemn a private way of necessity they are required to show a reasonable ne

cessity for the proposed road .... " State ex rel. Schleif, 119 Wash. at 373. 

Walches have failed to meet this threshold requirement. 

The Court should also be mindful of the consequences of granting 

Walches an easement by necessity under the speculative assumption that they 
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might obtain a conditional use permit for their intended use of the property. 

What ifWalches are unable to obtain a permit, or the permit is restricted to pre-

elude lowboys from driving along the horseshoe-shaped pond? And what if 

Walches obtain an easement by necessity, then change their mind and decide 

not to relocate their manufacturing plant? Does this now mean that Walches 

must relinquish their easement, since the alleged "necessity" (access for super-

load lowboys) has disappeared? Or have Walches successfully obtained a se-

cond access for their property that they can now use for some other develop-

ment purpose which does not require the use of lowboys? Perhaps this has 

been Walches' underlying motive all along and explains why they have not filed 

a land use application in the eight years since they acquired the property. It is 

the Clarks' position that Walches may have invoked the private condemnation 

statute to circumvent the land use application process. In short, Walches seek 

to get in through the back door what the front door may not allow. 

C. Walches' Lack of an Easement to Cross the Railroad Right-of-Way 
Does Not Render Their Property Landlocked. 

1. The Owens Road Crossing is a Public Way. 

"Railways are considered to be in the nature of public highways." Sec. 

& Inv. Corp. v. Horse Heaven Hgts., 132 Wn. App. 188, 194, 130 P.3d 880 

(2006), review denied, 158 Wn.2d 1023 (2006). "[R]ailroad companies were 
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created on the theory that they will provide a public benefit. Pursuant to stat

ute, the State has conferred upon them special and extraordinary privileges. In 

return, the railroads must hold their property in trust for the public use." Law

son v. State, 107 Wn.2d444, 449,730 P.2d 1308 (1986). TheCityofCleElum 

may open roads over existing railroad crossings. WAC 480-62-150(1)(a); 

State ex rel. Toppenish v. Public Serv. Comm., 114 Wash. 301, 306, 307-308, 

194 P. 982 (1921). 

Walches argue that the lack of a permanent easement over the Owens 

Road railroad crossing makes their property "landlocked" as a matter of law. 

The argument is misplaced. Owens Road provides public access to the City of 

Cle Elum' s regional wastewater treatment plant, Peninsula Trucking, and sev

eral other properties lying south of the railroad tracks that bisect Owens Road. 

CP at 44 7, 451. And there is no evidence that the railroad company will ever 

seek to close the Owens Road crossing. CP 250, 451. 

Walches also face the same problem with the BNSF railroad tracks that 

bisect Oakes A venue. Walches have provided no evidence to establish that 

they could obtain a permanent easement for this crossing, which Walches con

cede must be used by their super-load lowboys before they can turn left onto 

Swiftwater Boulevard at the starting point of the easement they claim by ne

cessity. RP (5/10/11) at 43-44, 53-54, 57-58. The BNSF right-of-way over 
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Oakes A venue extended 200 feet south of the centerline of the tracks before the 

Clarks acquired the southern 150 feet. CP at 4, 4 7 -52; see also Ex. 112 and 

Appendix 3 hereto. This leaves the tracks and at least another 50 feet ofBNSF 

property that Walches would have to cross before accessing Swiftwater Boule-

vard with their super-load lowboys. Like the Owens Road crossing, the Oakes 

A venue crossing is used by the general public, and there is no evidence that 

BNSF will ever seek to close it. 

2. BNSF Cannot Unilaterally Close the Owens Road 
Crossing. 

BNSF cannot close the Owens Road crossing at its whim. Moreover, 

unless and until the railroad crossing is closed to public access, and no altema-

tive route is provided, Walches' property is not "landlocked"; thus, the element 

of "necessity" is missing. 

The Utilities and Transportation Commission ("UTC") of the State of 

Washington has exclusive jurisdiction over the closing of railroad crossings. 

See generally RCW 81.53.010 et seq., and, in particular, RCW 81.53.060. A 

"highway" is broadly defined under RCW 81.53.010 to include "all state and 

county roads, streets, alleys ... and other public places actually open and in 

use .. .for travel by the public." (Italics added.) Because Owens Road is open 

to public travel, it squarely meets the definition of a "highway" for UTC juris-
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dictional purposes. The Legislature intended the UTC's jurisdiction over rail

road crossings to be broadly applied, as the very definition of "highway" in 

RCW 81.53.010 makes clear. If the Legislature wanted to exclude some pub

licly used crossings from the UTC's jurisdiction, it would have clearly done so. 

Given the inherent danger of railroad crossings, it makes no sense that the Leg

islature would exclude any public crossing from the UTC's jurisdiction. 

Because the Owens Road railroad crossing is under the UTC'sjurisdic

tion, as a matter of law, BNSF cannot unilaterally close it. RCW 81.53.060; 

see also WAC 480-62-150(1)(b). Under RCW 81.53.060, to close the crossing, 

BNSF would have to file a "petition in writing" with the UTC, "alleging that 

the public safety requires ... the closing or discontinuance of [the] existing 

highway crossing, and the diversion of travel thereon to another highway or 

crossing .... " And if the "public safety" threshold requirement is met, and the 

installation of signals or other safety devices could not adequately address the 

public safety concern, then BNSF would have to provide an alternative access 

so that the property owners lying south of the Owens Road railroad tracks 

would not be left landlocked. Alternatively, BNSF would have to pay just 

compensation for the taking of the access. See,~' RCW 81.53.060, .070, and 

.110. 

The bottom line is that Walches' claim that they are "landlocked", be-
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• 

cause they lack a permanent easement over the railroad crossing, is misguided. 

Unless and until the crossing is actually closed, and no alternative access is 

provided, Walches' claim of an easement by necessity is at best speculative and 

premature. The Owens Road crossing has been open for use for over 80 years 

(CP at 989), and there is no evidence whatsoever that it will ever be closed (CP 

at 447, 451).5 

D. Walches Have Failed to Establish "Reasonable Necessity". 

Assuming arguendo the unsupported proposition that the lack of"insur-

able access" over the railroad crossing would in fact preclude Walches from 

obtaining financing for the manufacturing plant they claim they intend to locate 

on their property, and that the inability to use the existing access for their super-

load lowboys renders their property "landlocked" for purposes of RCW 

8.24.010, Walches have still failed to meet the requisite element of"reasonable 

necessity". To begin with, the lack of insurable access can be readily cured by 

obtaining a standard railroad crossing permit, which Walches have deliberately 

failed to obtain. RP (5111111) at 43, 85, 94-95; CP at 21. 

Furthermore, Walches have failed to demonstrate that the existing ac-

5 Given the draconian impact to the City of Cle Elum if access to its Regional Wastewater 
Treatment Plant were cut off (RP ( 5/10/11) at 13 5-3 6), any closure of the crossing would likely 
be conditioned upon alternative access being provided; and, if not, the City would create such 
access on its own (RP (5/10111) at 136). 
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cess cannot be improved to accommodate their lowboys, or that temporary 

ramps could not be used to bring their equipment over the railroad crossing, or 

that they cannot bring their equipment to their property from another direction 

that would not require condemning the private property of another. Indeed, 

Walches have willfully refrained from making any attempt to meaningfully ex-

plore these alternatives. RP (5/11111) at 41-44,46-56. It is Walches' burden to 

establish that other alternatives are cost-prohibitive, or otherwise not feasible, 

before they can claim an easement by necessity. See,~' State ex rel. Carlson, 

107 Wash. at 232; State ex rel. Schleif, 119 Wash. at 373, Dreger, 46 Wn.2d at 

40, Beeson, 41 Wn. App. at 188. Accordingly, Walches' claim of an easement 

by necessity fails on this basis as well. 

E. The Trial Court's Award of the Clarks' Attorney Fees and Costs 
is Supported by Substantial Evidence. 

1. RCW 8.24.030 is to be Broadly Applied. 

An award of attorney fees is proper when authorized by contract, by 

statute, or by a recognized ground in equity. Kennedy v. Martin, 115 Wn. App. 

866, 871, 65 P .3d 866 (2003). If so authorized, a trial court's award of attorney 

fees is viewed for abuse of discretion. Id. at 872. "A trial court abuses its dis-

cretion when it exercises discretion in a manifestly unreasonable manner or ba-

ses its decision on untenable grounds or reasons." Id. 
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Here, the relevant statute allowing fees is RCW 8.24.030, which pro

vides in part: "In any action brought under the provisions of this chapter for 

the condemnation of land for a private way of necessity, reasonable attorneys' 

fees and expert witness costs may be allowed by the court to reimburse the 

condemnee." (Emphasis added). 

The language ofRCW 8.24.030 should, in itself, support the trial court's 

award of attorney fees to the Clarks in successfully defending against all three 

of Walches' easement claims. "[I]n 1988, the Legislature enacted RCW 

8.24.030 in its current form, allowing for attorney fees for 'any action' for a 

private way of necessity. Laws of1988, ch. 129, §3." Beckman v. Wilcox, 96 

Wn. App. 355, 365, 979 P.2d 890 (1999), review denied, 139 Wn.2d 1017

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